
Regular Council Meeting – October 17, 2012 
Page 1 
 
  
 

CITY OF TAVARES 1 
MINUTES OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 2 

OCTOBER 17, 2012 3 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 4 

4:00 p.m. 5 
 6 

COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT     ABSENT 7 
 8 

Robert Wolfe, Mayor   9 
Bob Grenier, Vice Mayor 10 
Norman Hope, Councilmember  11 
Lori Pfister, Councilmember 12 
Kirby Smith, Councilmember 13 
 14 
STAFF PRESENT 15 
 16 
John Drury, City Administrator 17 
Robert Q. Williams, City Attorney 18 
Susie Novack, Deputy City Clerk 19 
Brad Hayes, Utility Director 20 
Chris Thompson, Public Works Director 21 
Joyce Ross, Communications Director 22 
Bill Neron, Economic Development Director 23 
Tammey Rogers, Community Services Director 24 
Lori Houghton, Finance Director 25 
Richard Keith, Fire Department 26 
Stoney Lubins, Police Department 27 
 28 
I.  CALL TO ORDER 29 
 30 
Mayor Wolfe called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.  31 
 32 
II. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 33 
 34 
Chase Allen, Youth Pastor, Liberty Baptist Church, gave the invocation and those present recited 35 
the pledge of allegiance. 36 
 37 
III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 38 
 39 
Mr. Drury said he would like to make the following changes to the agenda: 40 
 41 

• add Tab 3A) Big House Sports Complex Presentation/Request for Financial Assistance 42 
for Permit Fee 43 

• add Tab 15A) Discussion of the November City Council Meeting Date 44 
• add Tab 15B) Discussion of the Date to hear the Royal Harbor Pressure Study and 45 

Recommendations 46 
• remove Tab 19) Ruby Street Stormwater Project  47 



Regular Council Meeting – October 17, 2012 
Page 2 
 
  
 
Mr. Drury said the Ruby Street Stormwater Project will be brought back before Council at a later 1 
date. 2 
 3 
MOTION 4 
 5 
Kirby Smith moved to approve the agenda with the added changes, seconded by Bob 6 
Grenier.  The motion carried 5-0. 7 
 8 
lV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 9 
 10 
None. 11 
 12 
V. PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 13 
 14 
Tab 2) Recognition of Eagle Scout for Architectural Rendering of Picnic Pavilion at Nature 15 
Park 16 
 17 
Tamera Rogers introduced Garrett McCormack (15 years old), Eagle Scout candidate, who 18 
recently approached the city with a request to fulfill his service project by building a picnic pavilion 19 
at the Tavares Nature Park.  She said Mr. McCormack has raised $3,800 toward the project to 20 
date.  Ms. Rogers noted that the picnic pavilion will also fulfill one of the FCT land grant 21 
management plan requirements on park lands.   22 
 23 
Garrett McCormick showed an architectural rendering of the pavilion plans to Council.   24 
 25 
Tab 3) Customer Service Week 26 
 27 
Mayor Wolfe read a proclamation declaring October 22-26, 2012 as National Customer Service 28 
Week.   29 
 30 
Ms. Houghton recognized Utility Billing Customer Service Representatives Alexis Prevatt, Merry 31 
Steinhorst, and Steve Rogers who were in the audience.  She noted their professionalism to the 32 
customers and citizens of Tavares. 33 
 34 
Tab 3a) Big House 35 
 36 
Mr. Drury said The Big House indoor Sports Facility off Lane Park Road is nearing completion 37 
and Mr. and Mrs. Lemon are requesting financial assistance with the $90,819.00 building permit 38 
fee that is owed to the city.  The permit fee cannot be waived as it is set by ordinance.  He said 39 
staff directed the Lemons toward the county’s economic incentive program and the Lake County 40 
Economic Development Department is making a recommendation to the Board of County 41 
Commissioners to assist with the building permit fee by awarding $11,000 after they create five 42 
high wage jobs, as well as $25,000 through the county business assistance permit fee program 43 
toward the permit fee balance.  This leaves a balance of $54,000, which the county has offered to 44 
assist by splitting the cost with the city at $27,000 each.  The city has no cash incentive program 45 
and the monies would have to come out of reserves if awarded.  Mr. Drury noted the project has 46 
received $1.193M in impact fee waivers from the city and county.   47 



Regular Council Meeting – October 17, 2012 
Page 3 
 
  
 
 1 
Chet Lemon thanked Council for the opportunity and said they are excited to be in the City of 2 
Tavares.  He said they are nearing completion and invited the Councilmembers to tour the facility. 3 
 4 
Gigi Lemon said The Big House is no longer a dream but a reality.  She said The Big House will 5 
contribute to the city in three ways: 6 
 7 

• Children/Schools – Tutoring and after school care 8 
• Economic Development – Events will impact local restaurants, businesses, gas stations, 9 

et al 10 
• Jobs – Creation of five high value jobs, 80-100 people working events, full time/part 11 

time/seasonal positions 12 
 13 
Ms. Lemon said many of the events (state, national and international) to be held at The Big 14 
House are already existing events that were hosted in other areas.  She said four businesses will 15 
be moving into The Big House including All American Sports, Sunshine Athletics, Florida AAU 16 
and a management company.   17 
 18 
Ms. Lemon asked for Council’s consideration in awarding $27,000 toward matching funds with 19 
the Lake County Board of County Commission.  She said the County will match the City of 20 
Tavares funds and in turn pay the building permit fee to the city. 21 
 22 
Mayor Wolfe said that he is glad the Lemons chose the City of Tavares to build The Big House, it 23 
is a great project and touring the facility was incredible.  He said the city was instrumental in 24 
helping the project through the Impact Fee Waiver Program which saved over $500,000 as well 25 
as the County’s program which saved another $600,000.  He said the city has not assisted with 26 
permit fees in the past and he is not in favor. 27 
 28 
Councilmember Smith said he is thrilled that the Lemon’s brought The Big House to Tavares.  He 29 
noted that the permit fees have been deferred two times and that he is not in favor of forgoing the 30 
permit fee or matching the county. 31 
 32 
Vice Mayor Grenier said he is proud and glad that The Big House is in Tavares and noted that the 33 
budget has already passed.  He said that taking the funds out of Reserves is very difficult.   34 
 35 
Councilmember Hope noted his support for the project and asked Mr. Lemon if the project will be 36 
delayed or stopped if the request is turned down. 37 
 38 
Mr. Lemon said the project will not stop but will be delayed.  He said there have been many 39 
unanticipated change orders throughout the project. 40 
 41 
Councilmember Hope asked if a loan could be paid back to the city with a 6 month to 1 year note.  42 
Mr. Lemon confirmed.  Mr. Lemon said they are currently 90 days behind in opening the facility.   43 
 44 
Councilmember Hope asked if a loan from the city is a possibility. 45 
 46 



Regular Council Meeting – October 17, 2012 
Page 4 
 
  
 
Attorney Williams said that it would be easier to leave the fee due but defer payment for an 1 
additional 6 months which could be done in a payment plan.  Mr. Williams said if the city agreed 2 
to do any type of deferral or payment plan for economic incentive the correct way would be to 3 
amend the existing ordinance.  He said that he believes this would pass the public benefit 4 
requirement.   5 
 6 
Vice Mayor Grenier asked if the county will still consider a deferral as the same thing as a match.  7 
Attorney Williams said he did not know as he was not involved in the negotiations with the county.   8 
 9 
Councilmember Hope noted his support for the project and the request. 10 
 11 
MOTION 12 
 13 
Norman Hope moved to direct Mr. Drury to work with the Lemon’s concerning a 6 month 14 
loan of $27,000 at the prevailing interest rate that the city would have to pay if the city 15 
borrows monies.  The motion was seconded by Bob Grenier. 16 
 17 
Mr. Hope said the city would need to see if that would meet the county’s standard for matching.   18 
 19 
Attorney Williams asked if this is a true cash loan to pay back to the city itself.  Mayor Wolfe 20 
inquired about interest rates. 21 
 22 
Mark Jones, Building Inspector, asked how the city would be legally covered and noted that the 23 
Certificate of Occupancy cannot be issued until the permit fee is paid and issued.  Mr. Drury said 24 
the city will receive a check from another department for the loan amount as well as the payment 25 
from the county which will cover the cost of the permit fee.   26 
 27 
Vice Mayor Grenier inquired about loan payments.  Mr. Drury said it sounds like a short term 6 28 
month loan for $27,000 plus the prevailing interest rate to be paid in full within 6 months.   29 
 30 
Mayor Wolfe asked about the city’s recourse if the loan is not repaid.  Attorney Williams said that 31 
if the city does not have any security for the loan it would be a civil liability from a company.  He 32 
said there are currently mortgages on the property that are in front of any loan that the city would 33 
make so there is no practical security behind a multi-million dollar project.   34 
 35 
Councilmember Pfister said she appreciates and commends the Lemon’s for what they have 36 
brought to the city.  She noted the city has provided in $562,392.50 in impact fee waivers toward 37 
this project.  She noted that she is not in support of a loan.   38 
 39 
Councilmember Smith said he is 100% behind the Lemons but is not in favor of risking $27,000 of 40 
the citizens’ money.   41 
 42 
The motion failed 1-4 as follows: 43 
 44 
Robert Wolfe: No 45 
Bob Grenier:  No 46 
Norman Hope: Yes 47 



Regular Council Meeting – October 17, 2012 
Page 5 
 
  
 
Lori Pfister:  No 1 
Kirby Smith:  No 2 
 3 
Vl. SWEARING IN BY CITY ATTORNEY AND DISCLOSURE OF EXPARTE CONTACTS 4 
 5 
Attorney Williams noted there is one quasi judicial matter before Council (Ordinance 2012-31 – 6 
Rezoning of Wooton Park Expansion Site to Public Facilities District). He swore in those who 7 
wished to provide testimony. 8 
 9 
Attorney Williams asked Council if they wished to disclose any ex parte communications on this 10 
matter.  11 
 12 
Vll. READING OF ALL ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS INTO THE RECORD 13 
 14 
Ms. Novack read the ordinances and resolutions by title only: 15 
 16 

ORDINANCE 2012-26 17 
 18 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TAVARES, FLORIDA AMENDING 19 
THE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS BY AMENDING CHAPTER 20 
3, DEFINING "WINE AND BEER BAR"; AMENDING CHAPTER 8, TABLE 21 
8-2, PERMITTED AND SPECIAL USES, BY ALLOWING WINE AND 22 
BEER BARS IN THE CD (COMMERCIAL DOWNTOWN) DISTRICT AND 23 
BY AMENDING NOTE 20 OF TABLE 8-2, CLARIFYING THAT 24 
RESTAURANTS PROVIDING ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES WILL BE 25 
CLASSIFIED AS RESTAURANTS PROVIDING CERTAIN CONDITIONS 26 
ARE MET; SUBJECT TO THE RULES, REGULATIONS AND 27 
OBLIGATIONS ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF TAVARES COUNCIL; 28 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 29 

 30 
ORDINANCE 2012-31 31 

 32 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TAVARES, FLORIDA, REZONING 33 
APPROXIMATELY 3.61 ACRES OF PROPERTY GENERALLY 34 
LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF WOOTON PARK, SOUTH OF THE 35 
RAILROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY FROM PD (PLANNED DEVELOPMENT) TO 36 
PFD (PUBLIC FACILITIES DISTRICT); SUBJECT TO THE RULES, 37 
REGULATIONS AND OBLIGATIONS ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF 38 
TAVARES COUNCIL; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 39 
 40 

 41 
ORDINANCE 2012-32 42 

 43 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TAVARES, FLORIDA, AMENDING 44 
THE TAVARES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP 45 



Regular Council Meeting – October 17, 2012 
Page 6 
 
  
 

2020, PROVIDING FOR A CHANGE OF FUTURE LAND USE 1 
DESIGNATION ON APPROXIMATELY 3.61 ACRES OF PROPERTY 2 
GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF WOOTON PARK, 3 
SOUTH OF THE RAILROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY; FROM COMMERCIAL 4 
DOWNTOWN TO PUBLIC FACILITY/INSTITUTIONAL; PROVIDING FOR 5 
SEVERABILITY AND CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR TRANSMITTAL; 6 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 7 
 8 

ORDINANCE 2012-33 9 
 10 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCES 87-24, 99-21, AND 2007-36 11 
AND SECTIONS 17-75 AND 17-77 OF THE CITY OF TAVARES LAND 12 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO STORM WATER 13 
DRAINAGE UTILITY FEES; INCREASING SAID FEE FROM $4.50/ESFU 14 
TO $5.50/ESFU; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 15 

 16 
ORIDNANCE 2012-37 17 

 18 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 17-77 OF THE CITY OF 19 
TAVARES LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO 20 
THE STORMWATER DRAINAGE UTILITY MANAGEMENT FUND; 21 
AUTHORIZING THE CONSOLIDATION OF THE FUND WITH OTHER 22 
UTILITY FUNDS; AUTHORIZING THE FUNDS TO BE USED FOR ANY 23 
LAWFUL PURPOSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 24 

 25 
Vlll. CONSENT AGENDA 26 
 27 
Mayor Wolfe noted the Consent Agenda includes Tab 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10. 28 
 29 
Mayor Wolfe asked if anyone in the audience wished to speak on any items included on the 30 
Consent Agenda. 31 
 32 
Mayor Wolfe asked Council if there are any items on the Consent Agenda they would like to pull 33 
for discussion. 34 
 35 
Councilmember Smith asked to pull Tab 9. 36 
 37 
MOTION 38 
 39 
Kirby Smith moved to approve the consent agenda with Tab 9 pulled (Request for Road 40 
Closure for Howl O Fest Event; Request for Road Closure for Hot Rally Event; Approval of 41 
Monster Splash Fly In Event and Associated Contracts, TDC Grant and Agreement with Air 42 
Boss; Interlocal Agreement with Lake County and Rodger Kooser regarding Alleyway near 43 
Hotel; Authorization to Transfer Funds between Line Items in the Police Budget), 44 
seconded by Norman Hope.  The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 45 



Regular Council Meeting – October 17, 2012 
Page 7 
 
  
 
 1 
Tab 9) Award of Bid to Construct Improvements to Todd Way Cul de Sac 2 
 3 
Councilmember Smith said this request has been before Council several times and felt it needed 4 
an individual vote. 5 
 6 
MOTION 7 
 8 
Kirby Smith moved to approve the award bid construction improvements to Todd Way Cul 9 
de Sac, seconded by Bob Grenier.  The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 10 
 11 
IX ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS 12 
 13 
FIRST READING 14 
 15 
Tab 11) Ordinance #2012-37 – Amendment to Land Development Regulations to Combine 16 
the Water & Wastewater Funds – Read for First Reading Only 17 
 18 
SECOND READING 19 
 20 
Tab 12) Ordinance #2012-26 – Amendment to Land Development Regulations to Allow 21 
Stand Alone Wine & Beer Establishments in Certain Zonings 22 
 23 
Mr. Skutt said that in July 2012, Council directed staff to conduct research on wine and beer 24 
establishments that are permitted in neighboring cities and bring forward a proposed draft 25 
amending ordinance that would allow this use in Tavares.  He said Mt. Dora and Leesburg uses 26 
allow wine and beer establishments in certain designated land zonings.  Staff recommends beer 27 
and wine establishments should be a use most appropriate in the city’s commercial downtown 28 
zoning.  This zoning is already overlaid by the city’s downtown waterfront entertainment district 29 
which supports and encourages outside entertainment.  He said this district also has special 30 
regulations for open containers and alcoholic beverages.  He said this is a proposed amending 31 
ordinance to the Land Development Regulations which 1) defines wine and beer bar 2) allows 32 
wine and beer bar in the commercial downtown zone 3) fixes an inconsistency in the existing 33 
regulations that clarifies restaurants that also sell alcoholic beverages are classified as 34 
restaurants and not as bars.  On September 20, 2012, the Planning & Zoning Board voted 35 
unanimously to recommend approval of the ordinance with the condition that a prohibition of drive 36 
through windows for dispensing alcoholic beverages should be added to the ordinance. This 37 
condition has been added to the ordinance and staff recommends approval. 38 
 39 
Mayor Wolfe asked for comment from Council. 40 
 41 
Mayor Wolfe asked for comment from the audience. 42 
 43 
MOTION 44 
 45 
Kirby Smith moved to pass Ordinance 2012-26, seconded by Bob Grenier.   46 
 47 



Regular Council Meeting – October 17, 2012 
Page 8 
 
  
 
Councilmember Grenier said he liked the Planning & Zoning Board’s added recommendation. 1 
 2 
The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 3 
 4 
Tab 13) Ordinance #2012-31 – Rezoning of Wooton Park Expansion Site to Public Facilities 5 
District – 3.61 Acres 6 
 7 
Mr. Skutt said this ordinance rezones the waterfront property that the city has recently purchased 8 
from Tavares Station for the purpose of expanding Wooton Park from Planned Development 9 
Zoning to a Public Facilities Zoning.  Under the Land Development Regulations a Public Facilities 10 
Zoning is reserved and applies to all governmental uses.  On September 20, 2012 the Planning & 11 
Zoning Board voted unanimously to recommend approval of this rezoning.  Staff recommends 12 
approval of Ordinance 2012-31. 13 
 14 
MOTION 15 
 16 
Norman Hope moved to approve [Ordinance 2012-31], seconded by Bob Grenier.  The 17 
motion carried unanimously 5-0. 18 
 19 
Tab 14) Ordinance #2012-32 – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment for Wooton Park 20 
Expansion Site to Public Facility/Institutional – 3.61 Acres 21 
 22 
Mr. Skutt said this is a Future Land Use Map Amendment for the same properly previously heard by 23 
Council which amends the map designation from Commercial Downtown to Public Facility.  The 24 
Public Facility Land Use is the only compatible land use designation that goes with a Public Facility 25 
Zoning.  On September 20, 2012 the Planning & Zoning Board voted unanimously to recommend 26 
approval.  Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 2012-32. 27 
 28 
MOTION 29 
 30 
Bob Grenier moved to approve Ordinance 2012-32, seconded by Norman Hope.  The motion 31 
carried unanimously 5-0. 32 
 33 
Tab 15) Ordinance #2012-33 – Amendment to Ordinance 2007-36 for Stormwater Fees per 34 
Adopted FY 2013 Budget 35 
 36 
Ms. Houghton said that during the fiscal year 2013 budget process it was determined that 37 
operation costs and capital needs far exceeded the revenue generated from the current 38 
stormwater fees.  During the budget process Council identified several areas within the city that 39 
do require improvements of stormwater collection.  One area identified as needing urgent 40 
attention is the downtown area waterfront.  Stormwater issues on Ruby Street and the downtown 41 
area have been longstanding, but the city was able to secure in this past fiscal year for the 42 
upcoming fiscal year, 2 grants (State of Florida DEP and Lake County Water Authority) in the 43 
amount of $2M.  Those grants require a match by the city.  In response to stormwater needs 44 
within the city the Council, during the budget process, approved the change in stormwater fees 45 
from $4.50 per ERU to $5.50 per Equivalent Residential Unit.  This change is included in the 46 
amending ordinance so that the city can implement that budget goal.  She said that during the 47 



Regular Council Meeting – October 17, 2012 
Page 9 
 
  
 
next City Council meeting an ordinance will be brought forward for consideration which will allow 1 
the stormwater utility to be combined with the water/wastewater. 2 
 3 
Councilmember Smith asked for confirmation that the Tavares stormwater fee is lower than the 4 
surrounding cities.  Ms. Houghton confirmed. 5 
 6 
MOTION 7 
 8 
Bob Grenier moved to approve Ordinance 2012-33, seconded by Kirby Smith.  The motion 9 
carried unanimously 5-0. 10 
 11 
X. GENERAL GOVERNMENT 12 
 13 
15A) Discussion on November City Council Meeting Date(s) 14 
 15 
Mr. Drury said that he has received comments from some of the citizens regarding Council’s 16 
policy of holding one meeting in November in order to allow for the certification of election results 17 
by the Supervisor of Elections as well as charter requirements for seating a new Council.  He 18 
asked if Council would like to continue with the current policy.  He said that he wanted to make 19 
sure the reason for holding one meeting in November is clarified for the record; the decision was 20 
driven by statutory requirements, city charter requirements and election certification by the 21 
Supervisor of Elections. 22 
 23 
Attorney Williams said elected officials cannot be seated until they are certified by the Supervisor 24 
of Elections which is ten business days after an election and the city charter obligates Council to 25 
hold one meeting per month.   26 
 27 
Mayor Wolfe asked for comments from Council.  Discussion followed regarding several meeting 28 
date options.  Council noted their preference to continue with the current policy of holding one 29 
meeting on the 3rd Wednesday of each November. 30 
 31 
15B – Meeting Date for Royal Harbor Water Pressure Discussion 32 
 33 
Mr. Drury noted the Royal Harbor water pressure report has been completed but that he wanted 34 
to ensure that Council approves its placement on the December agenda. 35 
 36 
Mr. Wolfe reiterated that the November City Council meeting will be held on November 21, 2012.  37 
He asked that no sensitive items be included on the November agenda in order to allow for 38 
citizen participation. Council noted their preference to include the Royal Harbor water pressure 39 
discussion on the first agenda in December. 40 
 41 
Tab 16) Approval of Contract Language with lake County Sheriff for Dispatch Services 42 
 43 
Chief Lubins said that previously the Council voted to authorize the Mayor to execute a contract 44 
with the Sheriff to provide Dispatch services (see attached July 18th minutes). The draft contract 45 
called for an annual cost $291,000 plus CPI. There are two final contractual items that need 46 
Council direction as follows:  47 



Regular Council Meeting – October 17, 2012 
Page 10 
 
  
 
 1 

1. NON-EMERGENCY LINES - All emergency calls received would be answered “911 do 2 
you need Police, Fire or Ambulance?” and non-emergency calls are typically answered 3 
“Sheriff’s Communications Center, how may I help you?” The Council had wanted the 4 
Sheriff’s Call Takers to answer those non-emergency calls from Tavares residents as 5 
“Tavares Police Department how may I help you” although it would actually be a Sheriff’s 6 
employee taking the call. The Sheriff has recently obtained the cost estimates from the 7 
phone company to install the necessary phone lines and equipment to each Call Taker 8 
station to accommodate this special request by separating all the Tavares residential non-9 
emergency calls from all other calls. The estimate onetime cost is $60,000, which would 10 
be on top of the $291,000 annual contract. One option would be to have the Call Takers 11 
answer in the same manner that they answer for all of the other cities the Sheriff 12 
dispatches for (Clermont, Umatilla etc….) and save $60,000. If this option is selected then 13 
the non-emergency calls would be answered “Sheriff Communications’ Center How may I 14 
help you?” If an officer needed to be dispatched for the non-emergency issue (Noise 15 
Complaint for example) then the dedicated Tavares dispatcher would dispatch a Tavares 16 
Police Officer. Staff seeks final direction on this for final contract language.  17 

 18 
2. RADIO COMMUNICATIONS COSOLES: The Sheriff has completed his evaluation of the 19 

Tavares existing consoles and has determined that they would not be up to date and 20 
adequate to inter-phase with his new system and therefore a new compatible dedicated 21 
Tavares radio communications console needs to be purchased and installed for the 22 
Tavares dedicated dispatcher at a onetime cost of $66,000. The following two options 23 
exist: Purchase this equipment over a four year period with year one being at no cost and 24 
then paying $23,740 each year for three years (total cost is $71,220) or pay $66,000 25 
upfront which saves $5,200. Staff seeks final direction on this for final contract language.  26 

 27 
Chief Lubins noted there are two options for Council’s consideration:   28 
 29 

1. That Council removes the requirement to answer “Tavares Police Department” for non-30 
emergency calls and saves $60,000 and that Council funds the consoles over four years 31 
with year one being at no cost. This option results in no change to the FY 13 budget.  32 

2. That Council keeps the requirement to answer “Tavares Police Department” for non-33 
emergency calls and pays the $60,000 out of Police Department savings from recent 34 
retirements of a Captain and Lieutenant and that Council fund the consoles over four 35 
years with year one being at no cost. This option results in no change to the FY 13 total 36 
budget but puts off replacing the retiring Captain and Lieutenant with a road patrol officer 37 
for a year. 38 

 39 
Chief Lubins said staff recommends option one (1). 40 
 41 
Councilmember Smith asked Attorney Williams if there are any conflicts as he is employed by a 42 
phone company.  Attorney Williams said no, unless he was receiving a commission.  Mr. Smith 43 
said he is not.   44 
 45 
Councilmember Pfister asked if this is a new item and if the Sheriff’s office already has equipment 46 
to accommodate the city’s needs.  Chief Lubins said the Sheriff’s office has a different system 47 



Regular Council Meeting – October 17, 2012 
Page 11 
 
  
 
which cannot interface with the city’s current system.  He said software and licenses must be 1 
obtained for additional stations.   2 
 3 
Councilmember Hope said he is not in favor of spending $60,000 for verbiage.  He noted his 4 
concern for the increasing cost.   5 
 6 
Councilmember Smith said the Sheriff’s Office would not be able to dispatch for Tavares without 7 
additional personnel, consoles and licensing and felt that even with the unexpected expense 8 
there would be savings in the long run.   9 
 10 
Vice Mayor Grenier said he would like to go on the record that this was something that wasn’t 11 
brought up before and is an add-on at a cost of $71,220. 12 
 13 
Councilmember Pfister inquired about incurring any costs for possible upgrades that the Sheriff’s 14 
Office may make in the future.  Mr. Drury said Council approved a five year contract which will be 15 
renegotiated when it expires. 16 
 17 
Mayor Wolfe asked for comments from the audience. 18 
 19 
Councilmember Pfister asked how it would be funded if not out of the Police Department savings.  20 
Mr. Drury said it would come out of Reserves. 21 
 22 
MOTION 23 
 24 
Kirby Smith moved to go with staff recommendation Option #1, seconded by Lori Pfister.  25 
The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 26 
 27 
Tab 17) Establishment of Management Collective Bargaining Team for Police Union 28 
Negotiations 29 
 30 
Mr. Drury said Council needs to develop a Management Collective Bargaining Team for the 31 
upcoming Police Union negotiations.  He asked for Council’s direction if they would like the City 32 
Administrator, Police Chief and a Councilmember to begin the bargaining process.  He said that 33 
anything that is bargained from the management team will be brought back to the City Council for 34 
discussion and final approval. 35 
 36 
Councilmember Hope said he would like to volunteer.   37 
 38 
Councilmember Smith, Councilmember Grenier, and Mayor Wolfe noted their support for 39 
Councilmember Hope. 40 
 41 
Attorney Williams said Council may wish to hold a ‘Shade Meeting’ to provide the Management 42 
Team some broad term direction as the collective bargaining process proceeds.   43 
 44 
MOTION 45 
 46 



Regular Council Meeting – October 17, 2012 
Page 12 
 
  
 
Kirby Smith moved to appoint the City Administrator, Chief of Police and Councilmember 1 
Norman Hope to the Police Bargaining Management Team, seconded by Bob Grenier.  The 2 
motion carried unanimously 5-0. 3 
 4 
Tab 18) Approval of Ranking of Request for Proposals for Building Official Services 5 
 6 
Mr. Skutt said for the past six years the city has contracted with Nova Engineering to provide 7 
Building Inspection service.  Their contract expires this fall and in August staff posted a Request 8 
for Proposal for Building Official, planning review and inspection services.  The city received 9 
proposals from five different firms who had excellent references and demonstrated that they 10 
possessed the experience and capabilities to perform the service. With all being equal cost 11 
became the deciding factor to the ranking committee (Economic Development Director, Planning 12 
and Zoning Coordinator, and Community Development Director). Mr. Skutt said Quorum Services 13 
had the lowest proposed monthly fee of $9,967.00 and staff recommends Council move to 14 
instruct staff to negotiate a contract for execution by the City Administrator with Quorum Services 15 
for Building Inspection Services. 16 
 17 
Mr. Drury commended Mark Jones, Building Official, Nova Engineering, and said that he would 18 
like to make it clear for the record that he is one of the best, honest and straightforward 19 
professionals that he has worked with throughout his career and any Council decision is no 20 
reflection on Mr. Jones. 21 
 22 
Councilmember Pfister asked why we are changing.  Mr. Drury said it was due to the $24,000 in 23 
savings.   24 
 25 
Mayor Wolfe said $24,000 is a significant savings.  He commended Mark Jones and said he is 26 
very knowledgeable and excellent to work with.   27 
 28 
MOTION 29 
 30 
Bob Grenier moved to approve the ranking of RFP for Building Inspection Services, 31 
seconded by Kirby Smith.  The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 32 
 33 
Tab 19) Authorization for Malcolm Pirnie to Design Phase 1 for Ruby Street Stormwater 34 
Project 35 
 36 
(Deferred to a future meeting) 37 
 38 
Tab 20) Approval of Interlocal Agreement with Lake County for Replacement and 39 
Maintenance of City Traffic Signs 40 
 41 
Mr. Thompson said that Lake County is approaching all of the cities to provide traffic sign 42 
maintenance and emergency sign repair services at a cost of $10.08 per assembly per year with 43 
an estimated annual cost of $8,000 per year.  The county has its own sign shop and is well 44 
equipped to inspect, assess, record, maintain and fabricate traffic signs that comply with recent 45 
updates to the FDOT standards for reflectivity at a lower cost.  Mr. Thompson said that by utilizing 46 
the County’s established sign resources it will allow Tavares to comply with the required 47 



Regular Council Meeting – October 17, 2012 
Page 13 
 
  
 
standards at a reduced cost and permit the city’s limited staff to focus on more pressing and local 1 
issues.   The City of Clermont has satisfactorily used Lake County services for over a year and 2 
staff recommends approval.   3 
 4 
Mayor Wolfe asked for comment from Council. 5 
 6 
Mr. Thompson noted that D3 signs can no longer be manufactured in-house.  Mr. Drury said the 7 
city will save in liability as well. 8 
 9 
MOTION 10 
 11 
Norman Hope moved to approve, seconded by Bob Grenier.  The motion carried 12 
unanimously 5-0. 13 
 14 
Tab 21) Discussion of Utility Lien Policy & Procedures 15 
 16 
Ms. Houghton said staff would like to make a change to the current utility lien notification 17 
procedures by removing the requirement to ‘personally serve the property owner’ when 18 
notification by certified letter is returned unclaimed, or the signature of receipt for a certified letter 19 
does not match the property owner.  She provided a brief history of the lien processing 20 
procedures and said that due to the unique nature and volume (6,500 utility accounts) related to 21 
billing and collecting utility charges, it is difficult and costly for to provide personal service as 22 
many property owners are out of state, deceased, etc.   23 
 24 
Mayor Wolfe asked for comment from Council. 25 
 26 
Councilmember Smith said he just wants to make sure this is for utility and not code enforcement.  27 
Ms. Houghton confirmed.   28 
 29 
Councilmember Hope asked if it would include the new fire assessment.  Ms. Houghton 30 
confirmed.   31 
 32 
Attorney Williams noted that this policy was originally initiated due to a code enforcement case 33 
and that utility accounts are much more numerous and mobile.  He noted it is estimated that for 34 
15-16 liens the cost would be $1,000 to $1,300 for personal service.  He said the utility liens are 35 
working because closing agents in real estate are contacting the city to pay off outstanding lien 36 
balances for sales/short sales and personal service and is more protection than is needed for 37 
utility fees.   38 
 39 
MOTION 40 
 41 
Norman Hope moved to approve, seconded by Bob Grenier.  The motion carried 42 
unanimously 5-0. 43 
 44 
Tab 22) Removal of Contaminated Soil from Captain Haynes Road Site 45 
 46 



Regular Council Meeting – October 17, 2012 
Page 14 
 
  
 
Mr. Thompson said staff is seeking approval to spend approximately $10,785 for the removal of 1 
the contaminated overburden (soil over the water line) stemming from the discovery of a buried 2 
fuel tank during construction of Captain Haynes Road in 2007.  He said that the city received a 3 
request from FDEP on May 20, 2011 stating additional tasks are required before a Site 4 
Assessment Report can be considered complete.  The city complied with the FDEP request by 5 
contacting Andreyev Engineering to perform monitoring, testing and proper submittals.  The 6 
monitoring and testing is ongoing and requires two consecutive quarter reports indicating 7 
acceptable levels of contamination for compliance.  To date, levels from the 6 monitoring wells 8 
have receded in most cases to acceptable levels, however there still remains some ‘above 9 
acceptable’ levels which are increasing slightly.  The recommended course of action and cost 10 
proposed by Andreyev Engineering consists of removing and transporting the contaminated 11 
overburden to an off-site facility with the replacement of clean soil and reinstallation of a monitor 12 
well and staff recommends approval.  Mr. Thompson noted that $7,698 was saved with the 13 
previous approval of the bid award for the cleaning contract which can be applied to the cost 14 
leaving a balance of $3,087. 15 
 16 
Mayor Wolfe asked if this will solve the problem.  Mr. Thompson said they do not know, but that it 17 
is the best course of action.  Mr. Drury said the wells will be monitored for an additional six 18 
months.   19 
 20 
Councilmember Smith noted his preference to use the monies that were saved from the Building 21 
Services contract instead of coming out of General Fund Reserves toward the $3,087 difference.   22 
 23 
Vice Mayor Grenier said it sounds like an emergency type situation.  Mr. Thompson said 24 
Andreyev Engineering is holding off on the 4th quarter reply until they can include Council’s 25 
decision on the report.     26 
 27 
Mayor Wolfe spoke in support of approval.   28 
 29 
MOTION 30 
 31 
Kirby Smith moved to approve the work to clean up the contaminated soil using funds 32 
from the savings of two newly installed contracts, seconded by Lori Pfister.  The motion 33 
carried unanimously, 5-0. 34 
 35 
XVl. OLD BUSINESS 36 
 37 
None. 38 
 39 
XVll. NEW BUSINESS 40 
 41 
None. 42 
 43 
XVlll. AUDIENCE TO BE HEARD  44 
 45 
Mayor Wolfe asked if anyone in the audience wished to speak on any items not on the agenda. 46 
 47 



Regular Council Meeting – October 17, 2012 
Page 15 
 
  
 
 XlV. REPORTS 1 
 2 
Tab 23) City Administrator 3 
 4 
Mr. Drury said the Golden Triangle Summit Meeting is scheduled October 22, 2012 at 5:30 p.m. 5 
in Mount Dora.  6 
 7 
Mr. Drury read an Honor Flight Network flyer inviting all to come to a ‘welcome home’ celebration 8 
on October 28, 2012 at the American Legion Post 347, Lady Lake, for WWII Veterans returning 9 
from Washington DC.   10 
 11 
City Clerk 12 
 13 
City Attorney 14 
 15 
Finance Department 16 
 17 
Ms. Houghton thanked all the veterans and wished them a Happy Veterans Day.   18 
 19 
Economic Development 20 
 21 
Public Communications 22 
 23 
Ms. Ross said WUCF was in Tavares filming an upcoming program to air in January 2013.  She 24 
commended the Jones Brothers staff for their assistance during the filming and said WUCF was 25 
impressed with the city and indicated that they would return to Tavares in the future to cover 26 
additional stories. 27 
 28 
Ms. Ross noted that a Charter Referendum was included on the ballot 29 
 30 
Fire Department 31 
 32 
Public Works Department 33 
 34 
Community Services Department 35 
 36 
Human Resources 37 
 38 
Community Development  39 
 40 
Tab 24) City Council 41 
 42 
Councilmember Pfister 43 
 44 
Councilmember Hope 45 
 46 
Vice Mayor Grenier 47 



Regular Council Meeting – October 17, 2012 
Page 16 
 
  
 
 1 
Vice Mayor Grenier said his uncle (Ed) recently passed away.  He was a WWII Veteran, Marine 2 
3rd Division who served in Guam and Iwo Jima.   3 
 4 
Councilmember Smith 5 
 6 
Councilmember Smith noted the upcoming Seaplane Monster Splash, Howl O Fest, Trunk or 7 
Treat events. 8 
 9 
Councilmember Smith relayed his sympathies to Vice Mayor Grenier. 10 
 11 
Mayor Wolfe 12 
 13 
Adjournment 14 
 15 
There was no further business and the meeting was adjourned at 5:59 p.m. 16 
 17 
Respectfully submitted, 18 
 19 
 20 
________________________________ 21 
Susie Novack, MMC 22 
Deputy City Clerk 23 


